
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                     ( MARCH 28) (Week 13 of 2023) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                      
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held March 28, 2023 at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                     2.  Approval of the minutes of the March 21, 2023 meeting 

         

                     3.  Approval of claims  

 

                     4.  Approval of resolution thanking and commending Sneha Virippil for her years of service with   

                          Woodbury County 

 

                     5.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                          Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

 

                     6.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                          Approval of resolution for a tax suspension for B.C. 

   

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

End Consent Agenda 

 

 

                     7.   Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                           a.  Award the bid for project BRS-C097(147)—60-97 to the low bidder                              Action 

                           b.  Approve the resolution directing the county engineer to sign the contracts                   Action 

                                once a signed contract and bond are returned by the contractor for signature 

                           c.  Receive bids for project number CP-2023 and return them to the county                      Action 

                                engineer for review and recommendation 

                           d.  Award bid if low quote is clearly determined by bid results                                            Action  

 

                     8.   Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                           Not to Exceed $600,701 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #1) 

 4:40 p.m.           a.  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the Issuance                Action 

 (Set time)                of Notes to evidence the obligation of the County thereunder 

                           b.  Approval of resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action                         Action 

 

                     9.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                          Not to exceed $662,969 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #2) 

4:42 p.m.          a.  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the Issuance                 Action 

(Set time)                of Notes to evidence the obligation of the County thereunder 

                          b.  Approval of resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action                        Action 

 

                   10.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                          Not to exceed $60,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #3) 

4:44 p.m.          a.  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the Issuance                Action 

(Set time)                of Notes to evidence the obligation of the County thereunder 

                          b.  Approval of resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action                       Action 

 

                   11.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                          Not to exceed $276,330 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #4) 

4:46 p.m.          a.  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the Issuance                 Action 

(Set time)                of Notes to evidence the obligation of the County thereunder 

                          b.  Approval of resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action                        Action 

 

                   12.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                          Not to exceed $300,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #5) 

4:48 p.m.          a.  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the Issuance                 Action 

(Set time)                of Notes to evidence the obligation of the County thereunder 

                          b.  Approval of resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action                         Action 

 

4:50 p.m.   13.   Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

(Set time)           a.  Public hearing to levy General Basic property tax rate which exceed statutory            Action 

                               maximum 

                          b.  Approval of resolution authorizing the issuance and levying a tax for the                     Action 

                               payment thereof            

                          c.  Public hearing on proposed Fiscal Year 2023 budget                                                   Action 

                          d.  Adoption of Fiscal Year 2023 budget and resolution                                                     Action 

 

 

 



 

 

                  14.   Board of Supervisors – Mark Nelson 

                          Approval of letter to Iowa Utilities Board regarding eminent domain                                  Action  

  

                  15.  Board of Supervisors – Jeremy Taylor & Mark Nelson 

                         a.  Approval for one-time funding of $108,894 for certain employees under                       Action 

                              collectively bargained contracts to receive one-time ARPA funding and 

                              direct HR Director to engage in MOU process 

                         b.  Give direction concerning RAGBRAI and county website and discussion of                  Action 

                              opening courthouse for tours 

 

                  16.   Conservation – Daniel Heissel 

                          Approval to allocate $350,000 of remaining county ARPA funds towards the                    Action 

                          Little Sioux Park Campgrounds sewer project  

 

                  17.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                 Information 

   

                  18.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                         Information 

  

                  19.  Board Concerns                                                                                                          Information      

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS          
                       

   

MON., MAR. 27         6:00 p.m.         Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom   
                           
MON., APRIL 3         6:00 p.m.          Board of Adjustment meeting, First Floor Boardroom 
 
WED., APRIL 5       10:00 a.m.          Western Iowa Tourism Region Meeting, TBA 
 
                                  4:45 p.m.          Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.   
 

THU., APRIL 6        12:00 p.m.     SIMPCO Regional Policy & Legislative Affairs Committee, Hybrid                            
                                

WED., APRIL 12       7:30 a.m.          SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee Meeting, Hybrid   
 
                                  8:05 a.m.          Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                                10:00 a.m.          STARComm Board Meeting, The Security Institute, WIT Campus 
 
                                10:00 a.m.          Western Iowa Tourism Region Meeting, TBA 
 
                                12:00 p.m.          District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                             
 
THU., ARPIL 13      12:00 p.m.          SIMPCO Board of Directors, 1122 Pierce St. 
                              

                                  4:00 p.m.          Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
 
WED., APRIL 19     12:00 p.m.          Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 
                                10:00 a.m.          StarComm, Security Institute, WIT                                                     
 

THU., APRIL 20        4:30 p.m.          Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
FRI., APRIL 21       12:00 p.m.           Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting Northwest AEA, Room G              
 
MON., APRIL 24      6:00 p.m.           Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom                
                                                             
WED., APRIL 26      1:00 p.m.           Annual Hazardous Materials Response Commission Meeting, The Security Institute 
 
                                 2:30 p.m.           Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU., APRIL 27     11:00 a.m.          Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122   
                                                           Pierce St. 
 
 
 
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



MARCH 21, 2023, TWELFTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, March 21, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Bittinger II, Nelson, 
Taylor, Ung, and Radig.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Dennis Butler, Budget 
and Finance Director, Loan Hensley, Assistant County Attorney, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, and Michelle 
Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
  
1. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for March 21, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the March 14, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3. To approve the claims totaling $380,768.23.  Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve the items to be auctioned per Personal Property Disposition Policy.  Copy filed. 
 
5. To appoint a drainage attorney, Brian Yung, to assist the establishment of the Salix Drainage District.  Copy filed. 
 
6. To approve to clarify Rule #7 of the Board’s rules for public participation with the following language:  “Public 

comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved by 
the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting.”   

 
7a. To approve the separation of Madison Rowe, P/T Youth Worker, Juvenile Detention Dept., effective 03-25-23. 

Resignation.; the appointment of Nicholas Bauerly, Sheriff Deputy, County Sheriff Dept., effective 03-27-23, 
$36.13/hour. Appointment by County Sheriff.; and the reclassification of Kathryn Jones, P/T Youth Worker, 
Juvenile Detention Dept., effective 04-03-23, $22.47/hour, 3.5%=$.75/hr. Per AFSCME Juvenile Detention Contract 
agreement, from Grade 1/Step 2 to Grade 1/Step 3.  Copy filed. 

 
7b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for P/T Youth 

Worker, Juvenile Detention Dept. AFSCME Juvenile Detention:  $20.89/hour.  Copy filed. 
 
8. To approve the underground utility permit for Long Lines.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
9. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve letter of support for Siouxland Mental Health Services.  Carried 5-0.  

Copy filed. 
 
10. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the collective bargaining agreement with CWA Deputy Sheriffs for 

2023-2026.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11. Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to approve the Purchase Agreement with SpecPro Inc to complete the 

maintenance updates to the two skylights within the building located at 1014 Nebraska with the removal of the 
performance bond, total approved amount of $74,235.00.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
12. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to approve the certification of completion of project #L-B(O102)—73-97 with 

Dixon Construction for $335,988.40.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
13. Motion by Taylor second by Radig to appoint Thomas Fennell to the Veteran Affairs Commission.  Carried 5-0.  

Copy filed. 
 
14. Motion by Radig second by Ung to set a public roundtable meeting in the basement boardroom of the Woodbury 

County Courthouse for April 7 at 3:30 p.m. and invite Iowa’s area legislators to attend the roundtable hosted by 
the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury, Plymouth, and Monona counties.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 



March 21, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 
 

 

 

 
15. Deborah Main shared information regarding concerns about CO2 pipelines and would like Woodbury County to 

study and adopt an ordinance governing the siting and safety of hazardous CO2 pipelines.  Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Radig to receive the Iowa Utilities Board Schedule of Hearings from Deborah Main. 

Carried 5-0. Copy filed.  
 
 Vicki Hulse, Moville, and Doyle Turner, Moville, addressed the board regarding CO2 pipelines concerns. 
 
16.  Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
17. Sheriff Sheehan addressed the board regarding the law enforcement center. 
 
 Trevor Brass, Vice President of AFSCME Union, addressed the board regarding AFSCME union wages. 
 

Christine Murphy and Pam Jensen, Woodbury County Recorder’s Office, addressed the Board requesting to be on 
the agenda for 3-28-23 to request a 4% wage increase effective immediately for the AFSCME group.  

 
18.  Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until March 28, 2023. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 



 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.______ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Sneha Virippil 
 

FOR hER sErVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Sneha Virippil has capably served Woodbury County as an 

employee of the Siouxland District Health for 28 years from July 31, 1995 to April 11, 
2023 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Sneha Virippil as a Woodbury County employee, 

has been characterized by her dedication to the best interests of the citizens of 
Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Sneha Virippil for her 
years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below 

that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Sneha Virippil. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 28th day of March 2023. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
 Daniel A. Bittinger, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

BOARD ADMINISTRATION 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 

 
 
 

TO:              Board of Supervisors 
 

FROM:  Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant 
 

RE:  Consideration of a Petition for a Tax Suspension 
 

DATE:  March 23, 2023 
 
 
Please consider this request for a tax suspension for B.C.   If the Board approves this request, the 
suspension resolution requires the chairman’s signature 
 
 
Thank you. 
 
kmj 











Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 
Jason L. Comisky 
515.246.0337 
jcomisky@ahlerslaw.com 

 

 WISHARD & BAILY - 1888; GUERNSEY & BAILY - 1893; BAILY & STIPP - 1901; STIPP, PERRY, BANNISTER & STARZINGER - 1914; BANNISTER, CARPENTER, 
 AHLERS & COONEY - 1950; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, ALLBEE, HAYNIE & SMITH - 1974; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, HAYNIE, SMITH & ALLBEE, P.C. - 1990 

March 20, 2023 
 
Via E-Mail Only 
Mr. Dennis Butler 
Finance/Budget Director 
Woodbury County Courthouse 
620 Douglas Street, Room 104 
Sioux City, Iowa 51101  
 

Re: Woodbury County, State of Iowa 
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP & GCP)  

 
Dear Dennis 
 

We have now prepared and are enclosing herewith procedure to cover action taken by the 
County Officials relating to the above issues. A separate set is enclosed for each purpose. 

 
As to the essential county purpose portions of this issue, we enclose suggested 

proceedings to be acted upon by the Board on the date fixed for the hearing on the authorization 
to enter into a loan agreement and the issuance of the above mentioned Notes, pursuant to the 
provisions of Code Sections 331.402 and 331.443.  A certificate to attest the proceedings is also 
enclosed.  

 
The proceedings are prepared to show as a first step the receipt of any oral or written 

objections from any resident or property owner to the proposed action of the Board to enter into 
a loan agreement and issue the Notes.  A summary of objections received or made, if any, should 
be attached to the proceedings.  After all objections have been received and considered if the 
Board decides not to abandon the proposal to issue the Notes, a form of resolution follows that 
should be introduced and adopted. 
 
Action Must Be Taken At The Hearing. 
 

The Board is required by statute to adopt the resolution instituting proceedings to enter 
into a loan agreement and issue the Notes at the hearing or an adjournment thereof.  If necessary 
to adjourn, the minutes are written to accommodate that action. 
 

In the event the Board decides to abandon the proposal, then the form of resolution 
included in the proceedings should not be adopted.  We would suggest that, in this event, a 
motion merely be adopted to the effect that such proposal is abandoned. 



 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Section 331.443 of the Code provides that any resident or property owner may appeal the 
decision to take additional action to the District Court for the County within 15 days after the 
additional action is taken.  The additional action is final and conclusive unless the court finds 
that the Board exceeded its authority. 
 

In the event an appeal is filed by any resident or property owner, please see that we are 
notified immediately; and, as soon as available, a copy of the notice of appeal should be 
furnished our office for review. 

 
As to the general county purpose portions of this issue, we enclose herewith suggested 

proceedings to be acted upon by the Board on the date fixed for the hearing on the proposed 
authorization of a loan agreement and the issuance of the above mentioned Notes, pursuant to the 
provisions of Code Sections 331.402 and 331.442.  A certificate to attest the proceedings is also 
enclosed. 
 
Action must be taken at hearing.   

 
The proceedings are prepared to show as a first step the receipt of any petition for 

election on the proposed action of the Board to issue the Notes. 
 

If no petition is filed, the Board should proceed to adopt the resolution instituting 
proceedings to take additional action for the authorization of a loan agreement and the issuance 
of the Notes.  Please notify me of the action taken so we can arrange to prepare the proceedings 
to follow. 
 

In the event the Board decides to abandon the proposal to enter into a loan agreement and 
issue Notes, then the form of resolution should not be adopted.  We would suggest that, in this 
event, a motion merely be adopted to the effect that the proposal is abandoned. 
 
If Petition for Referendum is Filed. 
 

If such a petition has been received and if the Board decides not to abandon the proposal 
to enter into a loan agreement and issue the Notes, a form of resolution should be introduced and 
adopted, to adjourn the matter to permit preparation of the resolution to call an election. 
 

Please see that we are advised immediately if a petition is filed bearing signatures of a 
sufficient number of eligible electors. 

 
Please return a completed copy of each proceeding, via email followed up by hard 

copies, filled in as the original and certified back to us.   
 

  



 
Page 3 
 
 

 

If you have any questions pertaining to the proceedings enclosed or this letter, please do 
not hesitate to either write or call. 

 
 
Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Jason L. Comisky 
FOR THE FIRM 

 
 
 
JLC:ks 
Enclosures 
cc: Karen James (via email) 

Heather Satterwhite (via email) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

02174897-1\18799-041 



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR MARCH 28, 2023 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

 
Not to Exceed $600,701 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #1) 
 
•  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of Notes to 

evidence the obligation of the County thereunder. 
•  Resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE COUNTY. 

 
 
 
 



 

- 1 - 

March 28, 2023 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Basement Boardroom, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Chairperson 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Board Members: 

 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  



 

- 2 - 

The Chairperson announced that this was the time and place for the public hearing and 
meeting on the matter of the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to 
exceed $600,701 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #1), in order to provide funds to 
pay the costs of erecting, equipping, remodeling or reconstructing of the Courthouse including 
remodeling Room 210, software, hardware and other equipment; equipping the law enforcement 
center including software, hardware and other equipment; and erecting, equipping, remodeling or 
reconstructing the Siouxland District Health building, for essential county purposes, and that 
notice of the proposed action by the Board to institute proceedings for the authorization of the 
Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes had been published as provided by Sections 
331.402 and 331.443 of the Code of Iowa. 

The Chairperson then asked the Auditor whether any written objections had been filed by 
any resident or property owner of the County to the issuance of the Notes.  The Auditor advised 
the Chairperson and the Board that _____ written objections had been filed.  The Chairperson 
then called for oral objections to the issuance of the Notes and _____ were made.  Whereupon, 
the Chairperson declared the time for receiving oral and written objections to be closed. 

(Attach here a summary of objections received or made, if any) 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the hearing on the authorization of entering into a 
Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes to be closed. 

  



 

- 3 - 

The Board then considered the proposed action and the extent of objections thereto. 

Whereupon, Board Member ____________________ introduced and delivered to the 
Auditor the Resolution hereinafter set out entitled "RESOLUTION INSTITUTING 
PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $600,701 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES (ECP #1)", and 
moved: 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 
 

  to ADJOURN and defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of notes to the meeting to be held at __________ 
_____.M. on the __________ day of _______________, 2023, at this place. 

 
Board Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and 

the vote was, 

 
AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the measure duly adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION INSTITUTING PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE 
ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $600,701 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTES (ECP #1) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by law, the Board of Supervisors 

has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute proceedings for the 
authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to exceed $600,701 General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #1), for the essential county purposes, in order to provide 
funds to pay the costs of erecting, equipping, remodeling or reconstructing of the Courthouse 
including remodeling Room 210, software, hardware and other equipment; equipping the law 
enforcement center including software, hardware and other equipment; and erecting, equipping, 
remodeling or reconstructing the Siouxland District Health building, and has considered the 
extent of objections received from residents or property owners as to the proposed issuance of 
Notes; and following action is now considered to be in the best interests of the County and 
residents thereof. 



 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action 
for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $600,701 
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #1), for the foregoing essential county purposes. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury 
Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is 
reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced from time to time for capital 
expenditures which are to be paid from the proceeds of the above Notes.  The amounts so 
advanced shall be reimbursed from the proceeds of the Notes not later than eighteen months after 
the initial payment of the capital expenditures or eighteen months after the property is placed in 
service.  Such advancements shall not exceed the amount authorized in this Resolution unless the 
same are for preliminary expenditures or unless another declaration of intention is adopted. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2023. 
  

 
 
  
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
County Auditor 
 

 

 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the County showing 
proceedings of the Board, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Board with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Board and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public 
and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Board pursuant to the local 
rules of the Board and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 
notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective County offices as indicated therein, that no Board vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the County or 
the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Board hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

County Auditor, Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02174895-1\18799-041 



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR MARCH 28, 2023 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

 
Not to Exceed $662,969 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #2) 
 
•  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of Notes to 

evidence the obligation of the County thereunder. 
•  Resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE COUNTY. 

 
 
 
 



 

- 1 - 

March 28, 2023 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Basement Boardroom, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Chairperson 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Board Members: 

 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  



 

- 2 - 

The Chairperson announced that this was the time and place for the public hearing and 
meeting on the matter of the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to 
exceed $662,969 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #2), in order to provide funds to 
pay the costs of the planning, acquisition, leasing, construction, reconstruction, extension, 
remodeling, improvement, repair, equipping, maintenance, and operation of works and facilities 
useful for the collection, treatment, and disposal of surface waters and streams including the 28th 
Street sewer project; and the construction, reconstruction, improvement, or repair of Elk Creek 
Road which is located along the corporate limits of a city and is partly within and partly without 
the limits and is in whole or part a secondary road and is also a capital project that assists in 
economic development which creates jobs and wealth, for essential county purposes, and that 
notice of the proposed action by the Board to institute proceedings for the authorization of the 
Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes had been published as provided by Sections 
331.402 and 331.443 of the Code of Iowa. 

The Chairperson then asked the Auditor whether any written objections had been filed by 
any resident or property owner of the County to the issuance of the Notes.  The Auditor advised 
the Chairperson and the Board that _____ written objections had been filed.  The Chairperson 
then called for oral objections to the issuance of the Notes and _____ were made.  Whereupon, 
the Chairperson declared the time for receiving oral and written objections to be closed. 

(Attach here a summary of objections received or made, if any) 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the hearing on the authorization of entering into a 
Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes to be closed. 

  



 

- 3 - 

The Board then considered the proposed action and the extent of objections thereto. 

Whereupon, Board Member ____________________ introduced and delivered to the 
Auditor the Resolution hereinafter set out entitled "RESOLUTION INSTITUTING 
PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $662,969 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES (ECP #2)", and 
moved: 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 
 

  to ADJOURN and defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of notes to the meeting to be held at __________ 
_____.M. on the __________ day of _______________, 2023, at this place. 

 
Board Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and 

the vote was, 

 
AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the measure duly adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION INSTITUTING PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE 
ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $662,969 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTES (ECP #2) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by law, the Board of Supervisors 

has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute proceedings for the 
authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to exceed $662,969 General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #2), for the essential county purposes, in order to provide 
funds to pay the costs of the planning, acquisition, leasing, construction, reconstruction, 
extension, remodeling, improvement, repair, equipping, maintenance, and operation of works 
and facilities useful for the collection, treatment, and disposal of surface waters and streams 
including the 28th Street sewer project; and the construction, reconstruction, improvement, or 
repair of Elk Creek Road which is located along the corporate limits of a city and is partly within 
and partly without the limits and is in whole or part a secondary road and is also a capital project 
that assists in economic development which creates jobs and wealth, and has considered the 



 

- 4 - 

extent of objections received from residents or property owners as to the proposed issuance of 
Notes; and following action is now considered to be in the best interests of the County and 
residents thereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action 
for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $662,969 
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #2), for the foregoing essential county purposes. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury 
Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is 
reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced from time to time for capital 
expenditures which are to be paid from the proceeds of the above Notes.  The amounts so 
advanced shall be reimbursed from the proceeds of the Notes not later than eighteen months after 
the initial payment of the capital expenditures or eighteen months after the property is placed in 
service.  Such advancements shall not exceed the amount authorized in this Resolution unless the 
same are for preliminary expenditures or unless another declaration of intention is adopted. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2023. 
  

 
 
  
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
County Auditor 
 

 

 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the County showing 
proceedings of the Board, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Board with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Board and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public 
and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Board pursuant to the local 
rules of the Board and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 
notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective County offices as indicated therein, that no Board vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the County or 
the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Board hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

County Auditor, Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02174888-1\18799-041 



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR MARCH 28, 2023 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

 
Not to Exceed $60,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #3) 
 
•  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of Notes to 

evidence the obligation of the County thereunder. 
•  Resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE COUNTY. 

 
 
 
 



 

- 1 - 

March 28, 2023 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Basement Boardroom, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Chairperson 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Board Members: 

 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  



 

- 2 - 

The Chairperson announced that this was the time and place for the public hearing and 
meeting on the matter of the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to 
exceed $60,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #3), in order to provide funds to 
pay the costs of the acquisition and equipping a vehicle for emergency services which is 
necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens, for general 
county purposes, and that notice of the proposed action by the Board to institute proceedings for 
the authorization of the Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes and the right to petition 
for an election had been published as provided by Sections 331.402 and 331.442 of the Code of 
Iowa, and the Chairperson then asked the County Auditor whether any petition had been filed in 
the Auditor's Office, in the manner provided by Section 331.306 of the Code of Iowa, and the 
Auditor reported that no such petition had been filed, requesting that the question of issuing the 
Notes be submitted to the qualified electors of the County. 

The Chairperson then asked the Auditor whether any written objections had been filed by 
any resident or property owner of the County to the issuance of the Notes.  The Auditor advised 
the Chairperson and the Board that _____ written objections had been filed.  The Chairperson 
then called for oral objections to the issuance of the Notes and _____ were made.  Whereupon, 
the Chairperson declared the time for receiving oral and written objections to be closed. 

(Attach here a summary of objections received or made, if any) 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the hearing on the authorization of entering into a 
Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes to be closed. 

  



 

- 3 - 

The Board then considered the proposed action and the extent of objections thereto. 

Whereupon, Board Member ____________________ introduced and delivered to the 
Auditor the Resolution hereinafter set out entitled "RESOLUTION INSTITUTING 
PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $60,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES (GCP #3)", and 
moved: 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 
 

  to ADJOURN and defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of notes to the meeting to be held at __________ 
_____.M. on the __________ day of _______________, 2023, at this place. 

 
Board Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and 

the vote was, 

 
AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the measure duly adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION INSTITUTING PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE 
ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $60,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTES (GCP #3) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by law, the Board of Supervisors 

has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute proceedings for the 
authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to exceed $60,000 General Obligation 
Capital Loan Notes (GCP #3), for the general county purposes, in order to provide funds to pay 
the costs of the acquisition and equipping a vehicle for emergency services which is necessary 
for the operation of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens, and has considered the 
extent of objections received from residents or property owners as to the proposed issuance of 
Notes; and no petition was filed calling for a referendum thereon.  The following action is now 
considered to be in the best interests of the County and residents thereof. 



 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action 
for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $60,000 
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #3), for the foregoing general county purposes. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury 
Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is 
reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced from time to time for capital 
expenditures which are to be paid from the proceeds of the above Notes.  The amounts so 
advanced shall be reimbursed from the proceeds of the Notes not later than eighteen months after 
the initial payment of the capital expenditures or eighteen months after the property is placed in 
service.  Such advancements shall not exceed the amount authorized in this Resolution unless the 
same are for preliminary expenditures or unless another declaration of intention is adopted. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2023. 
  

 
 
  
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
County Auditor 
 

 

 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the County showing 
proceedings of the Board, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Board with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Board and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public 
and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Board pursuant to the local 
rules of the Board and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 
notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective County offices as indicated therein, that no Board vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the County or 
the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Board hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

County Auditor, Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02174783-1\18799-041 



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR MARCH 28, 2023 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

 
Not to Exceed $276,330 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #4) 
 
•  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of Notes to 

evidence the obligation of the County thereunder. 
•  Resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE COUNTY. 

 
 
 
 



 

- 1 - 

March 28, 2023 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Basement Boardroom, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Chairperson 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Board Members: 

 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  



 

- 2 - 

The Chairperson announced that this was the time and place for the public hearing and 
meeting on the matter of the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to 
exceed $276,330 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #4), in order to provide funds to 
pay the costs of the acquisition and equipping of sheriff’s vehicles which are necessary for the 
operation of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens, for general county purposes, and 
that notice of the proposed action by the Board to institute proceedings for the authorization of 
the Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes and the right to petition for an election had 
been published as provided by Sections 331.402 and 331.442 of the Code of Iowa, and the 
Chairperson then asked the County Auditor whether any petition had been filed in the Auditor's 
Office, in the manner provided by Section 331.306 of the Code of Iowa, and the Auditor reported 
that no such petition had been filed, requesting that the question of issuing the Notes be 
submitted to the qualified electors of the County. 

The Chairperson then asked the Auditor whether any written objections had been filed by 
any resident or property owner of the County to the issuance of the Notes.  The Auditor advised 
the Chairperson and the Board that _____ written objections had been filed.  The Chairperson 
then called for oral objections to the issuance of the Notes and _____ were made.  Whereupon, 
the Chairperson declared the time for receiving oral and written objections to be closed. 

(Attach here a summary of objections received or made, if any) 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the hearing on the authorization of entering into a 
Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes to be closed. 

  



 

- 3 - 

The Board then considered the proposed action and the extent of objections thereto. 

Whereupon, Board Member ____________________ introduced and delivered to the 
Auditor the Resolution hereinafter set out entitled "RESOLUTION INSTITUTING 
PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $276,330 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES (GCP #4)", and 
moved: 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 
 

  to ADJOURN and defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of notes to the meeting to be held at __________ 
_____.M. on the __________ day of _______________, 2023, at this place. 

 
Board Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and 

the vote was, 

 
AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the measure duly adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION INSTITUTING PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE 
ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $276,330 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by law, the Board of Supervisors 

has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute proceedings for the 
authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to exceed $276,330 General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #4), for the general county purposes, in order to provide 
funds to pay the costs of the acquisition and equipping of sheriff’s vehicles which are necessary 
for the operation of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens, and has considered the 
extent of objections received from residents or property owners as to the proposed issuance of 
Notes; and no petition was filed calling for a referendum thereon.  The following action is now 
considered to be in the best interests of the County and residents thereof. 



 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action 
for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $276,330 
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #4), for the foregoing general county purposes. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury 
Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is 
reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced from time to time for capital 
expenditures which are to be paid from the proceeds of the above Notes.  The amounts so 
advanced shall be reimbursed from the proceeds of the Notes not later than eighteen months after 
the initial payment of the capital expenditures or eighteen months after the property is placed in 
service.  Such advancements shall not exceed the amount authorized in this Resolution unless the 
same are for preliminary expenditures or unless another declaration of intention is adopted. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2023. 
  

 
 
  
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
County Auditor 
 

 

 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the County showing 
proceedings of the Board, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Board with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Board and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public 
and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Board pursuant to the local 
rules of the Board and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 
notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective County offices as indicated therein, that no Board vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the County or 
the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Board hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

County Auditor, Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02174773-1\18799-041 



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR MARCH 28, 2023 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

 
Not to Exceed $300,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #5) 
 
•  Public hearing on the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of Notes to 

evidence the obligation of the County thereunder. 
•  Resolution instituting proceedings to take additional action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE COUNTY. 

 
 
 
 



 

- 1 - 

March 28, 2023 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Basement Boardroom, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Chairperson 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Board Members: 

 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  



 

- 2 - 

The Chairperson announced that this was the time and place for the public hearing and 
meeting on the matter of the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to 
exceed $300,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #5), in order to provide funds to 
pay the costs of the acquisition and equipping of the sheriff’s department including body cameras 
and tasers which are necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare of its 
citizens, for general county purposes, and that notice of the proposed action by the Board to 
institute proceedings for the authorization of the Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes 
and the right to petition for an election had been published as provided by Sections 331.402 and 
331.442 of the Code of Iowa, and the Chairperson then asked the County Auditor whether any 
petition had been filed in the Auditor's Office, in the manner provided by Section 331.306 of the 
Code of Iowa, and the Auditor reported that no such petition had been filed, requesting that the 
question of issuing the Notes be submitted to the qualified electors of the County. 

The Chairperson then asked the Auditor whether any written objections had been filed by 
any resident or property owner of the County to the issuance of the Notes.  The Auditor advised 
the Chairperson and the Board that _____ written objections had been filed.  The Chairperson 
then called for oral objections to the issuance of the Notes and _____ were made.  Whereupon, 
the Chairperson declared the time for receiving oral and written objections to be closed. 

(Attach here a summary of objections received or made, if any) 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the hearing on the authorization of entering into a 
Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes to be closed. 

  



 

- 3 - 

The Board then considered the proposed action and the extent of objections thereto. 

Whereupon, Board Member ____________________ introduced and delivered to the 
Auditor the Resolution hereinafter set out entitled "RESOLUTION INSTITUTING 
PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $300,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES (GCP #5)", and 
moved: 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 
 

  to ADJOURN and defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of notes to the meeting to be held at __________ 
_____.M. on the __________ day of _______________, 2023, at this place. 

 
Board Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and 

the vote was, 

 
AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the measure duly adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION INSTITUTING PROCEEDINGS TO TAKE 
ADDITIONAL ACTION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $300,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTES (GCP #5) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by law, the Board of Supervisors 

has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute proceedings for the 
authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of not to exceed $300,000 General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #5), for the general county purposes, in order to provide 
funds to pay the costs of the acquisition and equipping of the sheriff’s department including body 
cameras and tasers which are necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare 
of its citizens, and has considered the extent of objections received from residents or property 
owners as to the proposed issuance of Notes; and no petition was filed calling for a referendum 
thereon.  The following action is now considered to be in the best interests of the County and 
residents thereof. 



 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action 
for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $300,000 
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #5), for the foregoing general county purposes. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury 
Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is 
reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced from time to time for capital 
expenditures which are to be paid from the proceeds of the above Notes.  The amounts so 
advanced shall be reimbursed from the proceeds of the Notes not later than eighteen months after 
the initial payment of the capital expenditures or eighteen months after the property is placed in 
service.  Such advancements shall not exceed the amount authorized in this Resolution unless the 
same are for preliminary expenditures or unless another declaration of intention is adopted. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2023. 
  

 
 
  
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
County Auditor 
 

 

 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the County showing 
proceedings of the Board, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Board with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Board and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public 
and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Board pursuant to the local 
rules of the Board and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 
notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective County offices as indicated therein, that no Board vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the County or 
the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Board hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

County Auditor, Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02174649-1\18799-041 







Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 
Jason L. Comisky 
515.246.0337 
jcomisky@ahlerslaw.com 

 

 WISHARD & BAILY - 1888; GUERNSEY & BAILY - 1893; BAILY & STIPP - 1901; STIPP, PERRY, BANNISTER & STARZINGER - 1914; BANNISTER, CARPENTER, 
 AHLERS & COONEY - 1950; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, ALLBEE, HAYNIE & SMITH - 1974; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, HAYNIE, SMITH & ALLBEE, P.C. - 1990 

March 20, 2023 
 
Via E-Mail Only 
Mr. Dennis Butler 
Finance/Budget Director 
Woodbury County Courthouse 
620 Douglas Street, Room 104 
Sioux City, Iowa 51101  
 
 

Re: Woodbury County, State of Iowa 
$1,900,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A  

 
 
Dear Dennis 
 

Enclosed are the proceedings to certify the tax levy for the payment of General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes to be issued after the budget filing deadline.  The "pre-levy" 
resolution imposes a levy for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  
The amount should be included in the budget or in an amended budget.  This resolution will 
satisfy the requirements for the resolution and levy as required by Iowa Code Chapter 76.  When 
the Notes are issued (the sizing of which may change as directed by the Board), the authorizing 
resolution will incorporate this levy. 
 

A copy of this Resolution must be filed with the Woodbury County Auditor.  It is 
essential that the Resolution be adopted and filed with the Woodbury County Auditor prior to 
April 1, 2023.  However, to be included in the certified budget, the Resolution should be 
adopted and filed prior to certification of the budget. 
 

Also enclosed is the Certificate for the Auditor to verify that this Resolution was filed. 
 

Complete all blanks, and the Chairperson and Auditor must sign where indicated 
including the Certificate.  Please return a completed copy of the proceeding, via email 
followed up by a hard copy, filled in as the original and certified back to us. 
  



Page 2 
 
 
 

If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
 

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Jason L. Comisky 
FOR THE FIRM 

 
 
 
 
JLC:ks 
Enclosures 
cc: Karen James (via email) 

Heather Satterwhite (via email) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
02174907-1\18799-041 



 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR MARCH 28, 2023 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

 
$1,900,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A 
 
 
•  Resolution authorizing the issuance and levying a tax for the payment thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE COUNTY. 

 
 
 
 



- 1 - 

March 28, 2023 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Basement Boardroom, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Chairperson 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Board Members: 
 
 

__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 
 

* * * * * * *  



- 2 - 

Board Member _________________________ introduced the following Resolution 
entitled "RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $1,900,000 GENERAL 
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2023A, AND LEVYING A TAX FOR THE 
PAYMENT THEREOF", and moved that the same be adopted.  Board Member 
_________________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and the vote 
was, 
 
 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the Resolution duly adopted as follows: 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
$1,900,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTES, SERIES 2023A, AND LEVYING A TAX FOR THE 
PAYMENT THEREOF 

 
WHEREAS, Woodbury County, State of Iowa ("Issuer"), is a political subdivision, 

organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Iowa, and is not affected 
by any special legislation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is in need of funds to pay costs of (a) erecting, equipping, 
remodeling or reconstructing of the Courthouse including remodeling Room 210, software, 
hardware and other equipment; equipping the law enforcement center including software, 
hardware and other equipment; and erecting, equipping, remodeling or reconstructing the 
Siouxland District Health building; (b) the planning, acquisition, leasing, construction, 
reconstruction, extension, remodeling, improvement, repair, equipping, maintenance, and 
operation of works and facilities useful for the collection, treatment, and disposal of surface 
waters and streams including the 28th Street sewer project; and the construction, reconstruction, 
improvement, or repair of Elk Creek Road which is located along the corporate limits of a city 
and is partly within and partly without the limits and is in whole or part a secondary road and is 
also a capital project that assists in economic development which creates jobs and wealth; (c) the 
acquisition and equipping a vehicle for emergency services which is necessary for the operation 
of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens; (d) the acquisition and equipping of 
sheriff’s vehicles which are necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare of 
its citizens; and (e) the acquisition and equipping of the sheriff’s department including body 
cameras and tasers which are necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare 



- 3 - 

of its citizens (the "Project"), and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation 
Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A, in the amount of $1,900,000 be issued; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has taken such acts as are necessary to authorize 
issuance of the Notes. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA: 
 

Section 1. Authorization of the Issuance.  General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 
2023A, in the amount of $1,900,000 shall be issued pursuant to the provisions of Iowa Code 
Sections 331.402, 331.442, 331.443 and 331.445 for the purposes covered by the hearing. 

Section 2. Levy of Annual Tax.  For the purpose of providing funds to pay the principal 
and interest as required under Chapter 76, there is levied for each future year the following direct 
annual tax upon all the taxable property in Woodbury County, State of Iowa, to wit: 

 

 
AMOUNT 

 FISCAL YEAR (JULY 1 TO JUNE 30) 
YEAR OF COLLECTION 

$444,250.08  2023/2024 
$434,264.00  2024/2025 
$420,698.00  2025/2026 
$407,132.00  2026/2027 
$393,566.00  2027/2028 

 
 

Principal and interest coming due at any time when the proceeds of the tax on hand are 
insufficient to pay the amount due shall be promptly paid when due from current funds available 
for that purpose and reimbursement must be made. 

Section 3. Amendment of Levy of Annual Tax.  Based upon the terms of the future sale 
of the Notes to be issued, this Board will file an amendment to this Resolution ("Amended 
Resolution") with the County Auditor. 

Section 4. Filing.  A certified copy of this Resolution shall be filed with the County 
Auditor of County of Woodbury, State of Iowa, who shall, pursuant to Iowa Code Section 76.2, 
levy, assess and collect the tax in the same manner as other taxes and, when collected, these 
taxes shall be used only for the purpose of paying principal and interest on the Notes. 

 



- 4 - 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2023. 
  

 
 
 
  
Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
County Auditor 

 

 



 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the County showing 
proceedings of the Board, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Board with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Board and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public 
and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Board pursuant to the local 
rules of the Board and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 
notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective County offices as indicated therein, that no Board vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the County or 
the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Board hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

County Auditor, Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02174917-1\18799-041 



COUNTY AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE 
 

I, _________________________, County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, 
hereby certify that on the __________ day of _______________, 2023 there was filed in my 
office the Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, adopted 
on the 28th day of March, 2023, the Resolution authorizing execution of a Loan Agreement and 
authorizing the issuance of $1,900,000 of General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A, 
and levying a tax therefor. 
 
 
 
 
 
(COUNTY SEAL) 

 
 
 
  
County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02174922-1\18799-041 

































 

 
Klass Law Firm, LLP 

Sioux City Office • 4280 Sergeant Road, Mayfair Center, Suite 290 • Sioux City, IA 51106 • 712-252-1866 • Fax • 712-252-5822 
Sioux Center Office • 20 3rd St. NE • Sioux Center, IA 51250 • 712-722-3210 • Fax • 712-722-3211  

 
Attorneys in Alphabetical Order                                    A Tradition of Service Since 1917                         Marvin J. Klass (1913 – 2000)  
Julia C. Adams *+                                     
Timothy A. Clausen *+                                        
Zachary D. Clausen *+                                            
Ryland L. Deinert *+^                                  Writer’s Direct Dial • 712-252-1866 ext. 230                                             
Clifton J. Kephart *+    Writer’s E-mail • phillips@klasslaw.com                       * Also admitted in Nebraska 
René C. Lapierre *+                                                                 + Also admitted in South Dakota 
William H. Larson *+                                ^ Also admitted in Minnesota  
Douglas L. Phillips *                           
Chris C. White *+                     www.klasslaw.com      
Jenny L. Winterfeld 
 
 

Memo To: Matthew Ung, Chairperson 
Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

From:  Woodbury County Compensation Board 
Date:  January 30, 2023 
Re:  Recommended Compensation Schedule for Elected Officials 
 
 
 
The Woodbury County Compensation Board met at 5:30 p.m. on January 24, 2023, to discuss 
the compensation schedule for elected officials in FY 23-24.  The Compensation Board 
unanimously recommends that the salary of each elected official be increased as follows: 
 
Attorney  7% 
Supervisors  10% 
Auditor  7% 
Treasurer  7% 
Sheriff   22% 
 
 
 
 
 
       /s/ Douglas L. Phillips 
 
 



APPROVAL OF FY 2023/2024 BUDGET AND CERTIFICATION OF TAXES 

 

RESOLUTION #__________ 

 

 

               WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has considered the proposed FY 

2023/2024 county budget and certification of taxes, and 

 

               WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the proposed county budget was held on March 28, 

2023, 

 

               NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County that the 

county budget and certificate of taxes for FY 2023/2024 as set forth in the budget summary, is hereby 

adopted and that the Woodbury County Auditor is directed to file said budget and to establish 

accounting records in accordance with the attached schedules. 

 

               BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairperson and the County Auditor be and are hereby 

authorized to sign the approved FY 2023/2024 county budget. 

 

               Signed and dated this 28th day of March, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                      _________________________________ 

                                                                                                      Matthew A. Ung, Chairman 

                                                                                                      Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________ 

               Patrick F. Gill 

               Woodbury County Auditor 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

3/23/2023 3/28

Supervisor/Nelson

✔

✔

Approve Letter to IUB Regarding Eminent Domain

Woodbury County is currently within a prjoect area for 3 different CO2 Pipelines. The Iowa Utilities Board(IUB) 
will have hearings later in 2023 and decide if eminent domain shall be granted. 

For almost a year Woodbury County residents have raised safety and constitutional issues with a propoosed 
carbon sequestration pipeline slated to traverse portions of Woodbury County. To acheive this eminent 
domain may be required. Eminent domain for private companies has been strictly prohibited but that could 
easily change. Residents have requested the BOS to stand firm for property rights.

Send the proposed letter to IUB on behalf of the Woodbury County BOS and citizens regarding carbon 
pipelines and eminent domain usage in Woodbury County. 

Approve a letter drafted by Supervisor Nelson and send to the Iowa Utilities Board(IUB)





WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

3/22/2023 3/28/2023

Supervisors J. Taylor/M. Nelson

Employees have approached the Board of Supervisors regarding raises during an interim between collectively bargained for 
contracts. The Board during the last decade has attempted to be fair while striking a balance that puts property taxpayers in a 
position that is unheralded: 9 years of flat taxation. It is simply too late to increase wages and reopen the bargaining process. This 
item does what can be done and takes some of the last ARPA money designed to retain employees and attempts to "build a bridge" 
to their next bargained-for contract. It seeks on July 1, 2023 to target those whose wages have not been bargained for, increased 
over the last year through renegotiations and an MOU process; instead of reopening the wage negotiation process, it implements a 
one-time wage retention bonus.

There will always be some sense of disparity as we attempt as much parity as is possible. A variety of factors guide the Board 
including looking regionally and statewide on competitiveness, the ability of taxpayers to pay and keep up with a budget that has 
nearly half of all our budget in wages, past increases, future staffing shortages, etc. The Board cannot continually try to keep up 
with each and every request, especially if it is outside of the normal collective bargaining process. However, if one-time funding 
remains and the Board has exhausted every other viable source of funding it seems reasonable that we would look to compensate 
our employees.  
 
The groups that seemed to be most appropriate fitting into this situation:  
 
AFSCME Juvenile Detention (22) 
AFSCME Courthouse (57) 
Others (14) 
 
Other groups have received, for example, a 4% wage increase July 2022 and then a 2% raise July 2023. Certain staff members 
ranging from secondary roads to jailers and another time county attorneys have been targeted due to "being behind," or having 
staffing shortage issues that necessitated increasing the incentive to be employed in Woodbury County.  Another group will go to 
6% as of July 2023, wage plan will be at 4.25%, elected officials will be decided through the BOS process but can assume to be 
above a 4% threshold as well. 
 
 

Approval for One-Time Funding of $108,894 for Certain Employees Under Collectively Bargained 
Contracts to Receive One-Time ARPA Funding and Direct HR Director to Engage in MOU Process

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

93 employees = $108,894 to include FICA and IPERS

Approve the following motion.

Approval for One-Time Funding of $108,894 for Certain Employees Under Collectively Bargained Contracts 
to Receive One-Time ARPA Funding and Direct HR Director to Engage in MOU Process



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

2/18/2023 2/28/2023

Supervisors J. Taylor/M. Nelson

Woodbury County can be the ideal origination destination for RAGBRAI annually. This summer, we have a unique opportunity on 
the heels of some initial successes last year. We tried to be responsive to the needs of Planning and Zoning to allow for the sale of 
food and beverage and saw that some private entrepreneurs and rural community leaders made statewide news doing so. This 
presents a unique opportunity where we can showcase our community. We've been contacted by folks from Des Moines on host 
locations coming in Friday the day before the ride. RAGBRAI hosts approximately 8,500 week-long riders and 1,500 daily riders. W  
 
We are anticipating 50,000 people in Sioux City for RAGBRAI. We would make the following recommendations under Background 
after meeting with Matt Salvatore (City of Sioux City/RAGBRAI) and Barbara Sloniker (Chamber/TSI).  

The following actions can demonstrate the partnership of Woodbury County in hosting RAGBRAI: 
 
1. Place a call in raising public awareness about rural offerings, e.g. vendors, breakfast places, repair shops, retail that wants to list 
the availability of services so that the county can act as a conduit to the RAGBRAI Committee. Our Board office and P&Z/Econ 
Development can help house, collect, and forward on this information. 
 
2. Place a link on the county webpage for those interested in learning more about RAGBRAI or hosting riders, volunteering, and 
getting involved. 
 
3. Encourage putting our best foot forward, e.g. businesses and public areas beautifying, placing, "Welcome RAGBRAI Riders" on 
their marquees, and perhaps as they seem fit tailoring to the occasion. 
 
4. Add to the RABRAI committee's "best things to do" stays in our county conservation parks. 
 
5. Open up the County Courthouse for tours on Friday and Saturday authorizing additional staff there at that time and reviving some 
of the audio-visual tour materials of yesteryear when we celebrated the 100-year anniversary of the Woodbiury County Courthouse. 
 
6. Have Supervisors Taylor/Nelson meet back in May-June timeframe and keep a good conduit of information on how we can 
collectively help in a push-pull, synergistic relationship so that the county demonstrates its good partnership with all entities 
involved. 

Give Direction Concerning RAGBRAI and County Website and Discussion of Opening Courthouse for 
Tours

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

Approve a working group led by Supervisors Taylor/Nelson in bringing together several different 
representatives in order to bring back a recommendation to the BOS.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

03-23-23 03-28-23

Dan Heissel - Conservation

I am requesting $350,000 in additional ARPA Funds for a sewer retention pond that will handle all the sewage flow for Little Sioux 
Park and any future additions we may add. This retention pond became necessary when our engineering firm designing our project 
for the original $800,000 allocated for sewer and water hook ups, found out our leach fields are not sized big enough to handle the 
campsites and facilites we currently have. They are unable to move forward with design or put stamp on the project because of this. 
Should any of our leach fields fail, we would be forced to reduce our camping fees and not allow dumping which leads to loss of 
campers and revenues. The proactive way is to build the retention pond now, do our original plan of hooking up water and sewer to 
each site, and be in compliance and ready for any future additions.

The original $800,000 in ARPA funds allocated to us was for water and sewer to be put into our campgrounds at Little Sioux Park 
and Southwood Park. These original ARPA funds will not pay for the engineering or installation of sewer and water to the 
campgrounds and pay for the retention pond, there is not enough to fund it all, thus the request for the additional $350,000. If we 
were forced to use the original funds for the retention pond and engineering we would not have enough money to even complete 
one campground.  These campgrounds generate revenue and bring people to the county which is economic development. By 
adding sewer hookups to each site we are able to charge more for camping which in turn raises our revenues.  
 
The retention pond would sit to the northwest corner of our wildlife area part of Little Sioux Park and not be near the users.  We 
have been told odor will not be an issue. This retention pond would be 2.5 to 3 acres in size, fenced in for liability reasons and 
would be able to handle all the sewage generated by the park now and in the future. Project estimates without ground borings to 
analzye materials is 300,000 to $400,000 for a 3 acre retention pond. This qoute is based off of other retention ponds the 
engineering firm has designed and built so it is close I believe.  We are having borings done to see if there is clay present because 
if there is, it can be used for the liner of retention pond and could reduce cost because it does not have to be hauled in or have to 
use a synthetic liner like heavy plastic.    
 
For example, we have been dealing with the DNR at Browns Lake on a septic system for a year now and are into it $42,500 for 
engineering just to get the permit so we can put in the septic system for the concession stand, and that is just for the concession 
stand.  Issues we ran into when we did sewer in the campground at Browns Lake brought this problem to light, the DNR is not 
allowing adding of septic fields or altering of existing septic fields in the park and wants to look at the park as a whole and require 
different treatments of sewage. This wholistic approach moves us out of chapter 69 and into chapter 64 which requires DNR 
permitting, engineering and this type of treatment, a retention pond. Once this retention pond is in place we should not have any 
issues with DNR or sewer in Little Sioux Park.  The retention pond would last over 20 years before it would need to be drained, 
material cleaned out to be put back into use again.  This material would then be spread on crop fields. 

Request Additional $350,000 in ARPA Funds for Sewage Retention Pond Little Sioux Park

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

✔

Impact will be to the remaining ARPA funds the county has.  The Conservation Board does not have any funds left to leverage to 
help pay for this.  On the positive side by doing this, it will allow us to raise our camping fees by $5 a night, thus increasing our 
revenue stream and usage to the park.  Little Sioux Park is our largest park. On an average year the campgrounds brings in around 
$152,000. By raising the fees for sewer would bring an additional $30,400 per year or more just for  Little Sioux Park. By putting in 
sewer it will also increase our usage which would also increase our revenues. 
 
The down side is if we don't do anything we could lose revenues because we don't have dump stations or sewer hook ups and 
would have to decrease our fees. 

To allocate an additional $350,000 of remaining ARPA funds towards the project.

To allocate $350,000 of remaining county ARPA funds towards the Little Sioux Park Campgrounds sewer 
project. 


	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Lt to County w-Res to Hold the Hearings #1-5 (02175566x7F7E1).pdf"
	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Resolution to Hold the Hearing - ECP #1 (02175564x7F7E1).pdf"
	Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $600,701 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #1), for the foregoing essent...
	Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced fro...

	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Resolution to Hold the Hearing - ECP #2 (02175560x7F7E1).pdf"
	Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $662,969 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP #2), for the foregoing essent...
	Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced fro...

	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Resolution to Hold the Hearing - GCP #3 (02175556x7F7E1).pdf"
	Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $60,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #3), for the foregoing general...
	Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced fro...

	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Resolution to Hold the Hearing - GCP #4 (02175555x7F7E1).pdf"
	Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $276,330 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #4), for the foregoing genera...
	Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced fro...

	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Resolution to Hold the Hearing - GCP #5 (02175553x7F7E1).pdf"
	Section 1. That this Board does hereby institute proceedings and take additional action for the authorization and issuance in the manner required by law of not to exceed $300,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP #5), for the foregoing genera...
	Section 2. This Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 and shall be maintained on file as a public record of such intent.  It is reasonably expected that the general fund moneys may be advanced fro...


	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Pre-Levy Resolution (02175548x7F7E1).pdf"
	Section 1. Authorization of the Issuance.  General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A, in the amount of $1,900,000 shall be issued pursuant to the provisions of Iowa Code Sections 331.402, 331.442, 331.443 and 331.445 for the purposes covered...
	Section 2. Levy of Annual Tax.  For the purpose of providing funds to pay the principal and interest as required under Chapter 76, there is levied for each future year the following direct annual tax upon all the taxable property in Woodbury County, S...
	Principal and interest coming due at any time when the proceeds of the tax on hand are insufficient to pay the amount due shall be promptly paid when due from current funds available for that purpose and reimbursement must be made.
	Section 3. Amendment of Levy of Annual Tax.  Based upon the terms of the future sale of the Notes to be issued, this Board will file an amendment to this Resolution ("Amended Resolution") with the County Auditor.
	Section 4. Filing.  A certified copy of this Resolution shall be filed with the County Auditor of County of Woodbury, State of Iowa, who shall, pursuant to Iowa Code Section 76.2, levy, assess and collect the tax in the same manner as other taxes and,...




